

CONTENTS

CHAPTER I. THE WALBROOK

Roman Londinium. Levels of Roman pavements. Level of Roman London and London to-day. Roman wall recently discovered by the author under the Mansion House. The Walbrook stream in Roman times, and in the middle ages. References to the stream in the Letter-Books. An account of City Sewers written in 1834 and 1840. Depth of the Walbrook. Position of the Walbrook. The present stream

CHAPTER II. THE STOCKS MARKET

Market laws in the first century. St Mary Woolchurch-haw. Liber Custumarum. Charter of 1268. Deed of 1285. Liber Horn, 1305. Corporation Letter-Books. Egerton MS. 1324. Charter of 1327. Letter-Book E, 1346. Egerton MS., the butchers, etc. in 1360-1. Ancient Statutes of Fishmongers. The erection of the Stocks building, 1384. "Right to light" in 1441-2. St Stephen's Walbrook agreement in 1484. Water supply to the market. St Stephen Walbrook. Sale of cloth and merchandise at the Stocks Market. Lease of the Stocks Building in 1524. City Companies to survey the market in 1534. Lease of the Stocks building in 1546. Rent of the Stocks Market and Chambers over in 1542. Cost of meat in 1544. Market rights in 1546. Twelve chief Companies to survey the market in 1551. Lease of the building in 1557. Lease in 1576. Vegetable in fruit market in 1592. Building in bad repair in 1601. The great stone house called the Stocks in 1601. One butcher one shop. Rent of the Chambers in 1602. "The Committee for leasing of the Citties Landes" in 1602. Sewer in 1606. Herb women in 1631. Lease of the market in 1645. Petition by the Goldsmiths' Company in 1657. Street obstructions. Sewers in Walbrook and Poultry. Decision of the Court of Common Council with reference to the obstructions in 1657. Notes on the Walbrook 1277 to 1477.

CHAPTER III. MARKET RENTS AND TENANTS



viii

CONTENTS

CHAPTER IV. ST MARY WOOLCHURCH-HAW

St Mary Woolchurch-haw and Parsonage. Levelling of ground after the great fire in 1666. St Stephen's Walbrook and the new levels. Corn market. Position of the Church of St Mary Woolchurch-haw, the cemetery and the Haw. Seventeenth century parish accounts. Damage to statues in 1643. Damage by the great fire. Churchwardens owners of neighbouring property. Site of the parsonage of St Mary. Description of the ground between the church and the Stocks Building in the fifteenth century. Description of the site after the great fire. Oliver's plans. Ogilby and Morgan's plan: buildings previous to the great fire. The Stocks Building from 1282. Right of way south of the Market Building. Bearbinder Lane. "Burford and others ". Burdett and others"; "Micklethwaite v. Mayor, etc." Premises between the Churchyard of St Mary and the Church of St Stephen. "The White Beare," "The Wheatsheafe." Bearbinder Lane before and after the fire. Purchase of properties to add to the Market in 1669-71. The Poultry before the fire of London: Bucklersbury. Water supply in the sixteenth century.

CHAPTER V. ST STEPHEN, WALBROOK

Early church of St Stephen, site now No. 4, Walbrook. Oliver's survey. Charter of Robert Chichele, dimensions of the site. Abstract of the King's Licence. Faculty of the Bishop of London dated 1428. The Procession way. Inventory at Guildhall. Conveyance from the Grocers' Company in 1694. Level of St Stephen's churchyard. Access from the Church to the Market. The Piazza. The Parsonage and the Clerk's house. Petition to the Lord Mayor in 1681 with reference to a proposed Porch to the Church: Sir Christopher Wren's designs for a Porch and a Clock. The ordinances of the Grocers' Company, 1692–4, with reference to a Parsonage and Clerk's house. Petition to the Common Council in 1738. Letter of the Rector dated 27th February, 1748. Building Accounts for the present Church

109-124

CHAPTER VI. THE STATUE

CHAPTER VII. THE STOCKS MARKET AFTER THE FIRE

Stocks Building to be taken down, order in 1667. Report upon the position of a new market. Dimension of the Church and Churchyard of St Mary Woolchurchhaw. Newgate Market. Report upon the application to the Archbishop of Canterbury and the Bishop of London to use the site of St Mary Woolchurch-haw as a market, dated 20th December, 1668. Verbal consents. Forming the new market. Cost of the work. Parsonage site: the piazzas. Release and Quit Claim dated 1671. Lime trees to be planted. Lease of the Markets. Size of the stalls and rent. Repairs to the Market in 1684. "Burford and others v. Burdett and others." Petitions, concerning refuse, etc. Profits in 1732. Fruit meters. Paving in 1710 132-142



CONTENTS

ix

CHAPTER VIII. THE SURVEYS AFTER THE FIRE

CHAPTER IX. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY

Purchase of property before building the Mansion House: Parsonage of St Mary Woolchurch-haw. Perpetual rental. Private Act of Parliament, 1737. Site of the Parsonage. Deputation to the Bishop of London: Calvert's property. The Swan Tavern. Clothworkers' Company. Ryder's property. Letter by Mrs Ann Hill dated 12th June, 1744. Duke of Bedford's property in the Poultry and Walbrook: proposed coach house and stable for the Lord Mayor. Property of the Clothworkers' Company. Total amount of purchase money. Thursby's interest. Lord Micklethwaite's property

CHAPTER X. THE PLANS FOR THE MANSION HOUSE

References to the Lord Mayor's House. List of private residences from 1246 to 1679. MS. dated 1609 giving particulars of residence, etc. Proposal to build a Mansion House in 1670. A reference in 1679. Committee appointed in 1689. Assessment of the Markets in 1697. Committee appointed in 1728 to find a site for the Mansion House. Fines for not holding the office of Sheriff. Committee appointed in 1734 to obtain designs, etc. Pamphlet written objecting to the present site: the reply. Sketch plan by the Sword Bearer and the Common Crier. A limited competition. Letter signed "Hiram" and one by Batty Langley dated 18th March, 1734. Articles in the *Grub St. Journal*. Gibbs and Leoni submit schemes. Gresham College and Leadenhall Market sites considered. Schemes by Leoni, James and Gibbs. Letter from Batty Langley, he is asked to compete. Dance also invited to submit drawings. Report of the Committee upon the Stocks Market site. Architects submit plans for Leadenhall Market scheme: letter from Captain De Belain. Report by Committee recommending the Stocks Market site. Report upon the designs of Leoni, Gibbs, James and Dance, also reference to Ware. Recommendation of Dance as architect. James Ralph's Critical Review of the Public Buildings. The Palladio story: Lord Burlington's drawings. Description of the designs by Isaac Ware, John James, James Gibbs, and Batty Langley. Press references. Payment to competitors. Notice to close the Stocks Market. Fleet Market. Committee bills, 1738. Hostile criticism of Dance's design: the Dance family .



x

CONTENTS

CHAPTER XI. THE BUILDING OF THE MANSION HOUSE

Dance's remuneration and duties. Proposals for removing the paving of the Stocks Market, digging, masons' and carpenters' work. Robert Taylor a mason. Members of the Court of Common Council allowed to tender. Gentleman's Magazine of 7th June, 1738, and the scandal of not accepting the lowest tender. Printer and publisher of the General Evening Post attend the Court of Aldermen. A pamphlet of 1738 on the scandal. Many letters in the press. "A Guide to St Thomas's Day," "City Corruption and Mal-Administration," etc. Contractors form a ring. Report of Committee on the scandal and reform proposed. A sewer in Bearbinder Lane. Piling and planking for foundations. Tenders for smiths' and plumbers' work. More members of the Court of Common Council become contractors. The Foundation Stone, the ceremony, coins deposited. Model of the building. Cordwell's bill, reference to arbitration, total cost to the city. Model exhibited at the Royal Exchange. Masons' work. Glazing. Flooring. Junction of Walbrook and the Poultry found too narrow for traffic: purchase of the Duke of Bedford's property. Extra allowance to contractors on account of "the rupture with Spain and France." The staircases. Finishings generally. Carving. Freeman and foreigners. Parish distress on account of buildings removed. Sanitary arrangements. Objections to the proposed sewer on the south side of the building. The proposed stable and coach house in the Mansion House not to be carried out. Lighting of the exterior. The Lord Mayor, Sir Crisp Gascoigne, enters into residence. Taxes in 1753. Poor Rate, etc. Dance's account. Egyptian Hall not completed. Assessment in 1755. Allowance to the Lord Mayor with reference to maintenance of furniture, etc. West entrance to be made. Proposed coach house and stable. Egyptian Hall used at Easter, 1757. Chandeliers for the Dancing Gallery and Egyptian Hall. Site near Leadenhall Market considered for stable buildings. Grocers' Company lend their stables to the Lord Mayor. Blackwell Hall and Dowgate Hill considered for a stable site: screen to be formed between the Cortile and the Vestibule. Portico on the west side. Sanitary arrangements. Insurance against fire considered unnecessary. Damage during the Gordon riots. Covered way across the Cortile. Dry rot in the roof of the Egyptian Hall. Porch on the west front to be enlarged. Sale of materials from the roof of the Egyptian Hall. Estimate for new roof to the Egyptian Hall and Ball Room and for covering in the Cortile. The Grand Staircase to be removed and two rooms formed. Gallery to Egyptian Hall to be removed. Paving to be removed and a wood floor fixed in the Egyptian Hall. Alterations to windows of the Egyptian Hall. Lighting by oil lamps. Report upon setting back the front iron railings.

CHAPTER XII. WORK DURING THE NINETEENTH CENTURY

Design to finish the Saloon in 1801. Petition of the Rector of St Mary Woolchurchhaw and St Mary Woolnoth, as evening lecturer. Alterations and formation of the Justice Room. Committee allowances in 1808. Wilkes's Parlour. Proposed shower bath. Gas suggested in 1814. Exterior lighted with gas in 1815. Gas introduced into the building in 1816 and found very unsatisfactory. Gasaliers purchased. Chaplain's Rooms. Two drawing rooms. Picture for fireplace in the South Drawing Room. A "warm bath" fitted in 1832. Fractures in the attic story of the Ball Room.



CONTENTS

Хl

Plate glass mania. Roof of Ball Room lowered. Sir Robert Smirke instructed with reference to alterations to the front steps. Accommodation for prisoners. Lookingglass mania. Alteration of entrance from Charlotte Row. Sculpture provided for the interior in 1852. Re-decoration of the Egyptian Hall. Present porch erected on west side of the building. Sewer under the building. Window tax in 1850. Water supply contaminated. Bibles and Prayer-books for all bedrooms. Removal of the front railings in 1868. Coloured glass windows for the Egyptian Hall. Piling defective in 1865. Extensive underpinning necessary. The Royal Window and the City Window; cost £380 each. Re-drainage. Lifts erected in 1876. Electric light introduced in 1891. Fire prevention in 1909 200–208

CHAPTER XIII. THE ROOMS IN THE MANSION HOUSE. THE DANCE FAMILY

Dance's design. The Dance family. Criticism of the building when first erected. Contemporary architects. Type of building. A Residence, a Court of Justice, and a Prison. Drawings at Sir John Soane's Museum. The Chaplain's Rooms. Panelling in the Ball Room, unfortunately altered. The Egyptian Hall, want of light. Vitruvius and an Egyptian Hall. Assembly Rooms at York. Gallery in the Egyptian Hall, great height of hall when first built. Venetian Parlour. Vestibule. The Young Men's Room. The Drawing Rooms. The Cortile. Basement. Coach house and stables. Basement altered. General views. Removal of the old sashes

APF	PENI	XIC	I. S	HERI	FFS'	FIN	ES	•	•	•	•	21
				THE E GR							NC	22
INI	EX	•	•									226
PI.A	NS										ΑТ	ENT